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December 31, 2009 RE: City of North Ridgeville
Industrial Pretreatment Program
Pretreatment Program Audit
NPDES Permit 3PD00043*LD
Lorain County

Notice of Violation
CERTIFIED L

Mayor and Council

City of North Ridgeville
7307 Avon Bekden Road
North Ridgeville, OH 44039

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This office conducted a Pretreatment Audit Inspection (PAI) of the City of North
Ridgeville Industrial Pretreatment Program (IPP) on September 29, October 6, and
October 9, 2009. The purpose of the inspection is to determine if the IPP is in
compliance with state and federal pretreatment regulations and requirements. Donna
Kniss represented the Ohio EPA all three days, and was accompanied on different days
by Andy Gall, Erm Gomes, Ryan Laake, Chris Moody, Karen Nesbit, and Virginia
Wilson. Lou Cover and Donald Daley represented the City, assisted by lke Habib and
Michael Marsh, from HB Engineering. Two industries, MetoKote and Lectroetch, were
visited during the inspection.

This letter constitutes a notice of violation. The Industrial Pretreatment Program is
currently in Significant Non-Compliance with the terms and conditions of NPDES
Permits 3PD00043*JD and 3PD00043*LD, for numerous deficiencies in meeting state
and federal requirements. The deficiencies found during the inspection are noted as
follows:

Program Elements

1. A review of the NPDES permit Discharge Monitoring Data showed that the
data for low level mercury could not be used because of errors in the
reporting. Because of the mercury variance procedure, there are two
reporting codes for low level mercury; one is generally used prior to the
variance determination, and one after. There are three days where both
reporting codes are used with different detection limits. The numerical
results and detection limits reported until April 2008 are clearly wrong.

Also, there were reported detection limits for other parameters that appear to
be transcription errors, for example, 2,020 pg/l, in a series of results with
detection limits of 20 ug/I.
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Also, there were reported detection limits for other parameters that appear to
be transcription errors, for example, 2,020 pg/l, in a series of results with
detection limits of 20 ug/l.

. Both NPDES permits 3PD00043*JD and 3PD00043*LD contained

compliance schedule requirements to notify Ohio EPA of North Ridgeville's
intention to file a mercury variance application, or to commit to meeting the
1.3 ng/l monthly average limit. This notification was not submitted in
response to either NPDES compliance schedule requirement. The data
collected since April 2008 indicates that North Ridgeville may be able to
commit to complying with the 1.3 ng/l limit (as noted above, data previous to
that point is unusable); nonetheless, North Ridgeville has viclated the terms
of both NPDES permits.

. One of the NPDES permit requirements is that communities with

pretreatment programs submit Annual Reports to the Ohio EPA,
documenting IPP activities during the previous year. The North Ridgeville
Annual Reports are due January 15. On January 23, 2009, Mr. Cover
requested a 30 day extension of the deadiine for the 2008 Report, which was
granted. However, to date, the 2008 Annual report has not been submitted.
Failure to submit an Annual Report is a violation of 40 CFR 403.12(i) and
OAC 3745-3-03(J).

. The North Ridgeville French Creek wastewater treatment plant (WWTP)

receives sanitary sewer discharges from Avon and Sheffield Village. In
response to NPDES permit requirements, North Ridgeville has developed a
Satellite Community Discharge Control Program, issuing permits to these
entities. However, these agreements do not address pretreatment program
authorities, such as the ability of North Ridgeville personnel to inspect
facilities located in these jurisdictions. Mr. Daley and Mr. Habib stated that
these authorities may be part of the original agreements creating French
Creek as a regional WWTP. However, this office’s review of other
agreements from that period has shown that industrial pretreatment is rarely
mentioned. Failure to have adequate multijurisdictional requirements is a
deficiency in the requirements found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1) and OAC 3745-3-
03(C)(1).

. The Enforcement Response Plan (ERP) has not been evaluated or modified

since 1996. Failure to have an up-to-date ERP is a deficiency in the
requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(5) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(5).

. The Sewer Use Ordinance (SUO) must be reviewed and discrepancies

within the SUO and with SIU permits resolved. For example, oil and grease
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is referenced in different places as edible oil and grease, hexane soluble
material, and Freon soluble material. These discrepancies can impact the
City's ability to enforce its SUO, which is a deficiency in the requirement
found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(1). Please note that the
Freon extraction method for oil and grease determination is no longer an
USEPA approved method.

Sanitary Sewer Dischargers

7. Failure to characterize and evaluate the discharges from all Industrial Users

(IUs) is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(ii) and
OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(b). Mr. Cover is notified of businesses moving in and
out of the City, and of significant changes, but does not periodically evaluate
existing industries for changes in operation. The City must develop a
procedure to ensure that all IUs are periodically evaluated and/or inspected,
for example, periodically sending every industry a wastewater questionnaire.

. The 2007 Annual Report identifies 13 industries as “significant/minor”, with 5

of those industries having sampling and reporting requirements. (The 2007
Report states a reporting frequency of zero, but Mr. Cover indicated that was
a typo, which is consistent with the file review.) There is nothing in the SUO
that supports the designation of industries as “significant/minors”; industries
are either Significant industrial Users (SiUs) or non-significant. Therefore,
the legality of imposing sampling and reporting requirements on these
industries could be challenged, especially because there are industries with
the same classification that do not have sampling and reporting
requirements. The permits issued to the five “significant/minors” do not
contain all the elements required in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1) and OAC 3745-3-
06(C)(1). In the files reviewed, the permits do not require sampling for
metals that have local limits, despite having those limits listed in the permit.
Industries must be classified as SlUs and issued permits containing all
required language, or the SUO modified to define the “significant/minor”
category and its requirements. Please note that modifying the SUO
constitutes a program modification and must be approved by the QOhio EPA
prior to implementation.

. The permit issued to Freeman Manufacturing and Supply Company included

provisions for total toxic organics (TTO) sampling or submission of a Toxic
Organics Management Plan (TOMP) with statements certifying compliance
with the plan. The file review indicated that TTO sampling was not
conducted, a TOMP was not submitted, and no TOMP certifications were in
the file. Failure to receive and analyze self-monitoring reports for all required
elements is a deficiency in the requirements found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(iv)
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and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(d). More significantly, TTO sampling with a
TOMP alternative is limited to specific categorical standards and industrial
sectors, which do not include Freeman Manufacturing.  Failure to
appropriately apply categorical standards is a deficiency in the requirements
found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1)(ii) and (iii) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(1)}(c)(iii).

10. The SIU permit for MetoKote was issued with an effective date of March 10,

11

2002 and an expiration date of March 9, 2007. The City sent a letter
extending the permit from March 9, 2007 to June 30, 2007, in order to
standardize expiration dates, and the new permit was issued with an
effective date of July 1, 2007. Having a permit duration of more than five
years is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1)(iii}B)(1)
and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(1)(c)(i).

.The SIU permits did not contain the requirement to notify the IPP within 24

hours of becoming aware of a permit violation, or to resample the parameter
within 30 days. This is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR
403.12(g)(2) and OAC 3745-3-06(H)(6).

12.The permit contained language requiring records be kept three years, but did

not include the requirement to extend the records retention while there is
unresolved litigation, as required in 40 CFR 403.12(0)(2) and QAC 3745-3-
06(G)(2).

13.The SUO contains a total dissolved solids (TDS) limit of 1500 mg/l, and this

imit is included in the MetoKote SIU permit. The file contained
correspondence indicating that MetoKote had requested an increase in the
TDS limit to 2500 mg/l, and some of the file contents indicated that this
request had been granted. This creates a discrepancy between the SUO,
SIU permit, and information provided by the City to the company. This
discrepancy impacts the City’s ability to enforce the limit in the SUO, which is
a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1) and OAC 3745-
3-03(C)(1). Improper application of local limits in a SIU permit is a deficiency
in the requirements found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1)(iii)(B)(3) and QAC 3745-3-
03(C) (M) (c)iii).

14. The MetoKote permit contains limits on page 3, and concentrations resulting

in surcharges on page 5. The surcharge concentration for ammonia is 15.0
mg/l, which is higher than the limit, which is 10.0 mg/i. The permit also
contains oil and grease as a surcharge parameter only. The City’'s SUO
contains an oil and grease limit of 100 mg/l (50.31(E}(10)) and an ammonia
limit of 15 mg/t (50.32(B) or (C), as there are two “(B)'s)).



Mayor and Council
City of North Ridgeville
December 31, 2009

Page 5

The purpose of surcharges is the recovery of the additional costs associated
with treating particular wastewaters. The purpose of fimits is the protection
of the collection system and the WWTP.  Aliowing concentrations with
surcharges that are above limits in the SUO can be construed as a violation
of 40 CFR 403.5(c)(1) and OAC 3745-3-03(C){4). The alternative is that the
limits are not technically justifiable, and consequently not enforceable. In
either case, the City’s ability to take enforcement action is diminished by the
discrepancy. The City must re-evaluate both the surcharge iimits and the
local limits, and revise the SUO and SIU permits accordingly. Please note
that a modification of the SUQO is a program modification, and must be
submitted to the Ohio EPA.

15.The sample frequency and type must be explicitly identified for each

pollutant, and must be consistent with the required analytical test procedure.
In particular, hexavaient chromium and pH were listed in the SIU permit as a
composite sample, but the analytical protocol requires a grab sample. The
Total Toxic Organics sample is defined as a composite, but volatile
parameters require a grab sample. Failure to appropriately define sample
type is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1)(ii)(B)(4)
and OAC 3745-3-03(C){1)(c)iv).

16. The MetoKote file contained a copy of a 1995 SIU permit application; there

did not appear to be a more recent application. The facility has submitted
self-monitoring reports, and the IPP has inspected and sampled the facility.
However, there has not been a comprehensive application/questionnaire
prepared and certified by the company since 1995. This is a deficiency in
the identification of the character and volume of pollutants contributed by
SlUs, which is a requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(ii) and OAC 3745-
3-03(C)(2)(b).

17.During the file review, the MetoKote self monitoring report for December

2007 through May 2008 couid not be located. If this report was not received
by the reporting date required in the SIU permit, it is a deficiency in the
requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(iv) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(d),
which is the failure to receive and analyze all required reports.

18.1t appears that North Ridgeville did not sampie the discharge from MetoKote

during 2007. Failure of the IPP to sample the SIU once per year is a
deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(v) and OAC 3745-
3-03(C)(2)(e).

19. The file review showed that MetoKote was inspected on December 30, 2006,

and then not inspected again until December 30, 2008. Failure to annually
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inspect all SIUs is a deficiency in the regquirements found in 40 CFR
403.8(f)(2)(v) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(e).

20.40 CFR 403.8((2) )(vi) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(f) require that SIUs be

21.

evaluated for the need for a slug discharge control plan. A check box for
this determination is on the inspection form, but was not checked on the
forms reviewed.

The MetoKote sample collected on December 30, 2008 was a grab sample
for all parameters, while the MetoKote permit requires composite sampling
for some parameters. This is a deficiency in the requirements found in 40
CFR 403.8(f}(2)(v) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)}(2)(e), which require the City to
analyze the effluent independent of information supplied by the SIU, and 40
CFR 403.12(g)}3) and OAC 3745-3-06(H)(7), which requires the collection of
composite samples.

22.Composite samples collected at MetoKote are time proportional samples,

which can contain samples from times that the company is not discharging
process wastewater. As discussed in 40 CFR 403.12(g)}(3) and OAC 3745-
3-06(H)(7), flow proportional sampling is required uniess time proportional
sampling is determined to be representative, and that fact documented in the
City's files. Failure to require the appropriate sampling and anaiysis
procedures is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.12(g)(3)
and OAC 3745-3-06(H)(4).

23.A new local limit for mercury was established on May 3, 2005, resulting in a

drop from 0.00043 mg/l to 0.000147 mg/l. The new MetoKote permit aiso
confained the new, lower limit. However, self monitoring reports from
MetoKote through 2008 stated that the limit was 0.00043 mg/l. This error
could lead both MetoKote and the City to miss permit violations. If this form
is provided by the City, this discrepancy can impact the City’'s ability {o
enforce its SUQ, which is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR
403.8(f)(1) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(1).

24 Local iimits for metals were developed by allocating loadings to MetoKote

based on categorical standards, and then dividing the remaining loadings by
the “general users”, which includes Lectroetch. The Lectroetch permit
states that Lectroetch has inorganic salts containing chromium, silver, and
zinc, and contains limits for pH and the local limits for metals. However, the
annual sampling required by the permit does not include any of the metals.
The lack of metals data to determine if Lectroetch is in compliance with the
local limits is a deficiency in the requirements found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(ii)
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and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(b), identifying the character and volume of
pollutants contributed by industrial users.

25.The Lectroetch file contained a December 13, 2006 inspection letter detailing
a compliance schedule. However, the file did not contain any information
demonstrating that the items in the compliance schedule were completed.
This constitutes a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR
403.8(f)(2)(iv) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(d), which is the failure to receive
and analyze all required reports.

Trucked Wastes Dischargers

26.As noted in the letter from our office dated November 5, 2009, the City’s
procedures for accepting hauled wastes did not provide sufficient safeguards
preventing the acceptance of hazardous waste. The procedural deficiencies
noted in that letter also negatively impact the City's administration of the IPP,
and some of those issues are discussed below.

27.The City’s representatives stated that trucked wastes were treated in the
advanced pretreatment building, which is acceptable. However, some of the
wastewater was generated in processes regulated by national categorical
pretreatment standards, and contained pollutants in concentrations
exceeding the limits in those standards. Acceptance of this trucked waste is
a violation of 40 CFR 403.1 and OAC 3745-3-02(C).

28.The Veolia, BFI Oberlin, CAMACO, Vermillion sludge, and Wakeman Village
Septage files were reviewed. None of the files contained permit applications
or documentation of an evaluation of the waste stream’s impact on the
WWTP.  The need for information from the generator describing the
operation generating the wastewater and certifying that the wastewater is not
a hazardous waste and that any analytical information provided is
representative of the wastewater was discussed during the audit and in the
November 5 letter. The lack of documentation is a failure to characterize
and evaluate the discharges from all Industrial Users, which is a deficiency in
the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)}(2)(ii) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(b).
Also, acceptance of a waste that will not be treated in the treatment plant,
but merely diluted, requires prior authorization by the Ohio EPA, and may
result in the requirement to submit an NPDES permit modification. Dilution
of a categorically regulated wastewater as a substitute for treatment is a
violation of 40 CFR 403.6(d) and OAC 3745-3-09(E).

29.There was analytical data in some of the files, and analytical data was
provided to this office under separate cover. However, many waste streams
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30.

31.

32.

were not analyzed for all local limit parameters, some data was not
consistent with 40 CFR 136 requirements, and most of the data was more
than two years old. Failure to conduct sampling and analysis in accordance
with the procedures contained in 40 CFR 136 is a deficiency in the
requirement found in 40 CFR 403.12(g}{5) and OAC 3745-3-06(H)(4).
Failure to characterize and evaluate the discharges from all Industrial Users
is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(ii) and OAC
3745-3-03(C)(2)(b).

As noted above, local limits for metals were developed by allocating loadings
to MetoKote based on categorical standards, and then dividing the remaining
loadings by the “general users”, which includes other industries, septage,
and hauled wastes. The trucked waste permits contain the metals local
limits. However, the required sampling does not include any metals.
Consequently, there is no documentation showing that the discharges
comply with the local limits, and that the assumptions used in the local limits
calculations are correct. Failure to identify the character and volume of
pollutants contributed by 1Us, including trucked wastes, is a deficiency in the
requirements found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(2)(ii) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(b).
Failure to have appropriate local fimits is a deficiency in the requirements
found in 40 CFR 403.5(c)(1) and OAC 3745-3-04(D).

The file review indicated that the BFI Oberlin Landfill permit expired in 2005.
Failure to have current, unexpired permits is a deficiency in the requirements
found in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1)(iii) and OAC 3745-3-03(C){1)(c).

The WWTP office is notified when tankers containing industrial wastes come
to the WWTP, and an operator evaluates the wastewater using the “French
Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Outside Flow Treatment “ form. The
form notes the place in the WWTP where the trucked waste is introduced,
has a “yes/nofslight” check for odor, and space for sample results.
According to the form the sample is analyzed for COD, Ammonia, pH, TOC,
BOD, and Suspended Solids. The form does not include any metals, and
there was no evidence in the files that incoming loads are analyzed for
metals or other hazardous compounds. Analyticai data is required when a
wastewater s first evaluated for acceptance to ensure the wastewater is not
hazardous and is amenable to treatment. Subsequent analytical data is
required to confirm that the wastewater being trucked to the plant is the
wastewater stream that was initially characterized. Failure to conduct all
required surveillance activities is a deficiency in the requirements found in 40
CFR 403.8(f)(2)(v) and (vii), and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(e).
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33.Samples are collected from the bottom of the tanker, and are taken to the
chemical building and combined in an open top plastic container in a
refrigerator set at an unknown temperature. Sampling from the bottom only
does not represent all of the material in the hauled waste, and dependent on
the waste, may not meet the requirements for a “representative sample”.
The sample storage procedure does not meet criteria found in 40 CFR 136
for the collection and preservation of samples, which renders any data
unusable in any enforcement proceedings. Failure to conduct sample taking
and analysis with sufficient care to produce evidence admissible in court

proceedings is a deficiency in the requirement found in 40 CFR
403.8(f)(2)(vii) and OAC 3745-3-03(C)(2)(qg).

On December 16, 2009, Lou Cover e-mailed an updated French Creek WWTP
Industrial Pretreatment Program Hauled Industrial Wastewater Discharge Application,
stating that language has been added to specifically address "hazardous waste" and
"representative sample" and improved certification statements. This application is

currently under review, and comments will be sent to Mr. Cover in separate
correspondence.

Please respond to this office within 45 days of the receipt of this letter, documenting the
steps that will be taken to address the issues noted above. If you have any
comments, please contact me at (330) 963-1285. alapo
donna.kniss@epa.state.oh.us. U.S. Postal Servicem
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